
 
 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PRINCE 
AGENDA 

July 11, 2023 
6:45 PM 

COMMUNITY HALL 

 
YouTube Stream 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCAxfSxlYppiNWde85MELeuQ 
 

Land Acknowledgement 
 It is important that we acknowledge, with respect, that we are in Robinson-Huron Treaty territory, 

that the land on which we are gathered is the traditional territory of the Anishinaabe and known 
as Bawating. Bawating is the home of the Garden River First Nation, Batchewana First Nation, 
and the Historic Sault Ste. Marie Metis Council. We should and will honor and respect these 

Indigenous people as the ancestors and traditional stewards of the land upon which we stand 
today. May our relationships with the land teach us to live and work in good relationship with 

one another. 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Approve Agenda  
Motion:  Be it resolved that the Agenda for the Open Meeting of Council of July 11, 2023, 

be approved. 
 
 Moved By: _________________ Seconded By: ________________ 
 

3. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest 
 

4. Minutes of Previous Meeting 
a) Minutes of Regular Meeting of June 13, 2023  
b) Minutes of Special Meeting of July 3, 2023 

 Motion:  Be it resolved that the minutes of the regular meeting of June 13, 2023, and  

               special meeting of July 3, 2023, be approved.  

 

   Moved By: _________________ Seconded By: ________________ 

 

 

5.  Questions and information arising out of the minutes. 
 

6. Petitions and/or delegations 
a) Dale Laroue Request for the purchase of slag 

Motion:  Be it resolved that the request for slag, be approved.  

 

Moved By: _________________ Seconded By: ________________ 

 

1

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCAxfSxlYppiNWde85MELeuQ


 
 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PRINCE 
AGENDA 

July 11, 2023 
6:45 PM 

COMMUNITY HALL 

 
b) PUC President and CEO Rob Brewer presenting update on services and new projects. 

Motion:  Be it resolved that presentation from PUC be received as information.  

 

Moved By: _________________ Seconded By: ________________ 

 

7. Staff Reports 
a) Fire Chief Report 

Motion:   Be it resolved that the Fire Chief Report, be approved. 

 
Moved By: _________________ Seconded By: ________________ 

 

b) CAO/Clerk/Treasurer’s Report- Revenue and Expenditure Report from June 2023. 
Motion:  Be it resolved that May Revenue and Expenditure Report, be approved. 

 

Moved By: _________________ Seconded By: ________________ 

 

c) Draft Budget for fiscal 2023-24 
Motion:  Be it resolved that the draft budget for fiscal 2023-24 be accepted for information. 

 
Moved By: _________________ Seconded By: ________________ 

 
8. Planning -none 

 
9. By-Laws 

 

10. Notice and Notice of Motions 
 

11. Correspondence 
 

12. Minutes of Boards and Committees  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2



 
 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PRINCE 
AGENDA 

July 11, 2023 
6:45 PM 

COMMUNITY HALL 

 

13. New Business 

 
14. Closed Session  

Municipal Act section 239 (2) 
(b) personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local board 
employees 
 
Motion: Be it resolved that this Council move into the Closed Session to consider items  

concerning labour relations or employee negotiations, (Municipal Act, section 
239 (2). 
 

Further be it resolved that should the said Closed Session be adjourned, the 
Council may reconvene in closed session to discuss the same matters without 
the need for a further authorizing resolution.  
 
Moved By: _________________ Seconded By: ________________ 

 
15. By-law 2023-20 Confirmatory for July 11, 2023. 

 
BEING A BY-LAW to confirm proceedings of the meeting of Council, July 11, 2023  
2023. WHEREAS Section 5(3) of the Municipal Act, R.S.O. 2001, as amended requires a municipal council 
to exercise its power by bylaw except where otherwise provided. 
 
AND WHEREAS in many cases, action which is taken or authorized to be taken by a Council or 
a Committee of Council does not lend itself to an individual bylaw. 
 
THE COUNCIL of THE CORPORATION of PRINCE HEREBY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
THAT the action of the Council at its meeting, July 11, 2023: 
 

1. in respect to each motion, resolution and other action passed and taken by the 
Council at its said meeting, is, except where prior approval of the Ontario Municipal 
Board is required, hereby adopted, ratified, and confirmed. 

 
2. THAT the Mayor and the proper officers of the Township are hereby authorized and 

directed to do all things necessary to give effect to the said action or to obtain 
approvals where required, and to execute all documents as may be necessary and 
directed to affix the Corporate Seal to all such documents as required. 

3



 
 
 

READ and passed in open Council this 11th day of July 2023. 
 

MOVE INTO CLOSED MEETING – ADJOURNMENT TO FOLLOW 

 

16. Adjournment 
 
Motion:  Be it resolved that this council hereby adjourns at ______p.m. until September  

                12,2023, or the call of the chair. 
 

Moved By: _________________ Seconded By: ________

4



 
 

5 

 

 

5



 

 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHP OF PRINCE 

Council Meeting Minutes 

June 13, 2023 

Township Hall, 3042 Second Line West, Prince Twp. 

6:45 pm 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

1 

 

Present: Council: Enzo Palumbo, Mayor 
Eugene Caputo, Councillor 
Margaret Christenson, Councillor 
Melanie Mick, Councillor 
Jane Weir, Councillor 

 
  Staff:  None 
  Interim Clerk: Antoinette Blunt 
  Media:  Marguerite LaHaye 
  Public:  Rose Zgraja 
 

1. Call to Order- 6:45 p.m. 
 

2. Approve Agenda 
 

Resolution 23-155 
Moved By: Councillor Melanie Mick Seconded By: Councillor Eugene 
        Caputo 
 Be it resolved that the Agenda for the Open Meeting of Council of June 

13, 2023, be approved. (Carried). 

 
3. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest – none Declared.  

 
4. Minutes of Previous Meetings 
 

Resolution 2023-156 
Moved By: Councillor Melanie Mick Seconded By: Councillor Jane Weir 
 Be it resolved that the minutes of the regular meeting of May 09, 2023, 

and special meeting of June 08, 2023, be approved. (Carried). 
 

5. Questions and information arising out of the minutes. 
 

Resolution 2023-157 
Moved By: Councillor Melanie Mick Seconded By: Councillor Jane Weir 
 Be it resolved that there were no questions or information arising out 

of the minutes. (Carried).  
 

6. Petitions and/or delegations. 

 
Resolution 2023-158 
Moved By: Councillor Melanie Mick Seconded By: Councillor Jane Weir 

     Be it resolved that there were no petitions or delegations. (Carried). 

6



 

 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHP OF PRINCE 

Council Meeting Minutes 

June 13, 2023 

Township Hall, 3042 Second Line West, Prince Twp. 

6:45 pm 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

2 

 

7. Staff Reports 
 
Resolution 2023-159 
Moved By: Councillor Eugene Caputo Seconded By: Councillor Jane Weir 

  Be it resolved that the Fire Chief Report, be approved. (Carried). 
 

Resolution 2023-160 
Moved By: Councillor Jane Weir Seconded By: Councillor Melanie Mick 

 Be it resolved that the opt-out for the BlueBox Transition program, be  
 approved. (Carried). 

 
 Resolution 2023-161 
Moved By: Councillor Melanie Mick Seconded By: Councillor Margaret  
        Christenson 

 Be it resolved that CAO/Clerk/Treasurer’s Report- Revenue and  
 Expenditure Report from May 2023. (Carried). 

8. Planning -none 
 

9. By-Laws 
 

Resolution 2023-162 
Moved By: Councillor Eugene Caputo Seconded By: Councillor Margaret  
        Christenson 

 Be it resolved that an annual Health and Wellness Payment to staff, be  
 approved, consisting of $500 to full-time and $250 to seasonal and part- 
 time. (Carried). 

 
 Resolution 2023-163 
Moved By: Councillor Margaret Christenson Seconded By: Councillor  
         Melanie Mick 

 Be it resolved that By-law 2023-16 to amend Position Description  
 for CAO/Clerk, be approved.  (Carried). 

  
 Resolution 2023-164 
Moved By: Councillor Margaret Christenson Seconded By: Councillor  
         Melanie Mick 

Be it resolved that Resolution 2023-01 be repealed and By-law.  
2023-17 to cease the purchase of services of Peggy Greco, be  
approved. (Carried). 

 
 
 

7



 

 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHP OF PRINCE 

Council Meeting Minutes 

June 13, 2023 

Township Hall, 3042 Second Line West, Prince Twp. 

6:45 pm 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

3 

 

10. Notice and Notice of Motions 
 

Resolution 2023-165 
Moved By: Councillor Margaret Christenson  Seconded By: Councillor  
         Melanie Mick 
  Be it resolved that that the correspondence from Planner Steve Turco, be 

received as information. (Carried). 
 

11. Minutes of Boards and Committees 
 
Resolution 2023-166 
Moved By: Councillor Jane Weir   Seconded By: Councillor Melanie Mick 
          
  Be it resolved that that the minutes of the May 02, 2023, Recreation 

Committee meeting, be approved. (Carried). 
 

12. New Business 
a) NCPS Municipality Introduction Letter 
 
Resolution 2023-167 
Moved By: Councillor Melanie Mick  Seconded By: Councillor Eugene  
       Caputo     
  
 Be it resolved that this council hereby requests that the Government 

of Ontario maintain OHIP coverage for chronic pain treatments and 
continue to provide much-needed care for the people of Ontario. This 
motion will be communicated to the Premier, Minister of Health, 
Associate Minister of Mental Health, and Addictions and your local 
MPP(s). (Carried). 

 
b) Township of Armour Aerodrome Resolution 

 
Resolution 2023-168 
Moved By: Councillor Margaret Christenson  Seconded By: Councillor  
        Jane Weir. 
 Be it resolved that this council supports Petition e-4364 –  
 petition to the Minister of Transport. (Defeated). 
 
c) Request for Delegations and Program Update for 2023 AMO Conference 

 
Resolution 2023-169 
Moved By: Councillor Margaret Christenson  Seconded By: Councillor  

8



 

 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHP OF PRINCE 

Council Meeting Minutes 

June 13, 2023 

Township Hall, 3042 Second Line West, Prince Twp. 

6:45 pm 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

4 

 

 Be it resolved that this council accepts the Request for Delegations and 
Program Update for 2023 AMO Conference, as information. (Carried). 

 
d) Reinstatement of Legislation to Retain Surplus Proceeds from Tax Sales 

 
Resolution 2023-170 
Moved By: Councillor Melanie Mick  Seconded By: Councillor Jane Weir 
           
 Be it resolved that Council direct Township staff to send a letter to all 

relevant taxation bodies, including the Ministry of Municipal Affairs, the 
Ministry of Finance, Wellington County Council, MPP Ted Arnott, Association 
of the Municipalities of Ontario and all other municipalities in Ontario urging 
them to re‐instate previous legislation that permitted a Municipality to apply 
for and retain the surplus proceeds from a tax sale in their jurisdiction. . 
(Carried). 

 
e) Leepfrog request for second tower 

 
Resolution 2023-171 
Moved By: Councillor Margaret Christenson  Seconded By: Councillor  
         Jane Weir. 

   
 Be it resolved that this council hereby approves Leepfrog Telecom to build a 

second tower in Prince Township at the location of Oak Ridge Line at 
46°31'49.08" N, 84°33’54.11" W. (Tabled). 

 
13. Closed Session 

 
Resolution 2023-172 
Moved By: Councillor Eugene Caputo  Seconded By: Councillor Margaret  
        Christenson. 
            
 Be it resolved that this council move into the Closed Session to consider 

items concerning labour relations or employee negotiations, (Municipal Act, 
section 239 (2). 

Further be it resolved that should the said Closed Session be adjourned, the 
Council may reconvene in closed session to discuss the same matters 
without the need for a further authorizing resolution. (Carried). 

 

 

9



 

 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHP OF PRINCE 

Council Meeting Minutes 

June 13, 2023 

Township Hall, 3042 Second Line West, Prince Twp. 

6:45 pm 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

5 

 

14. Confirmatory By-Law 2023-17 
 

Resolution 2023-173 
 

Moved By: Councillor Melanie Mick  Seconded By: Councillor Margaret  
        Christenson. 
 

   BEING A BY-LAW to confirm proceedings of the meeting of Council, June 13,  
2023. WHEREAS Section 5(3) of the Municipal Act, R.S.O. 2001, as amended 
requires a municipal council to exercise its power by bylaw except where 
otherwise provided. 

 
AND WHEREAS in many cases, action which is taken or authorized to 
be taken by a Council or a Committee of Council does not lend itself to 
an individual bylaw. 

 
THE COUNCIL of THE CORPORATION of PRINCE HEREBY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

 
THAT the action of the Council at its meeting, June 13, 2023: 

 
1. in respect to each motion, resolution and other action passed 

and taken by the Council at its said meeting, is, except where 
prior approval of the Ontario Municipal Board is required, 
hereby adopted, ratified, and confirmed. 

2. THAT the Mayor and the proper officers of the Township are 
hereby authorized and directed to do all things necessary to 
give effect to the said action or to obtain approvals where 
required, and to execute all documents as may be necessary 
and directed to affix the Corporate Seal to all such documents 
as required. 

 
READ and passed in open Council this 13th day of June 2023. 

 
15. Adjournment 

 
Resolution 2023-174 
Moved By: Councillor Melanie Mick  Seconded By: Councillor Jane Weir. 

 
  Be it resolved that this council hereby adjourns at 8:37p.m. until July 11, 

2023, or the call of the chair. 

10



 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PRINCE 
SPECIAL OPEN MEETING MINUTES– JULY 3, 2023 – 7:15 PM 

COMMUNITY HALL 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Present:  Council:  Enzo Palumbo, Mayor 

Eugene Caputo, Councillor 
Margaret Christenson, Councillor 
Melanie Mick, Councillor 
Jane Weir, Councillor 

 
  Staff:  None 
  Interim Clerk: Antoinette Blunt 
  Media:  Marguerite LaHaye 
  Public:  None 

 

1. Call to Order 
The Land Acknowledgement was read by Mayor Palumbo. 

 

2. Approve Agenda 
Moved By: Councillor Melanie Mick Seconded By: Councillor Eugene Caputo 
 

Motion: Be it resolved that the Agenda for the Open Meeting of Council of July 
3, 2023, be approved. (Carried). 

 
3. Repeal By-law 2023-14 

Moved By: Councillor Jane Weir Seconded By: Councillor Margaret Christenson 
 
Motion: Be it resolved that By-law 2023-14 for the appointment of Antoinette  

Blunt as Interim Clerk be repealed, effective Monday July 17, 2023. 
(Carried).  
 

4. Appointment of New CAO/Clerk 
Moved By: Councillor Eugene Caputo Seconded By: Councillor Jane Weir 
 

Motion: Be it resolved that By-law 2023-19 for the appointment of Gagan  
 Sandhu, as CAO/Clerk, be approved. (Carried). 

 

5. Adjournment 
Moved By: Councillor Melanie Mick Seconded By: Councillor Melanie Christenson 
 

Motion: Be it resolved that this council hereby adjourns at 7:25 p.m. until Monday 

July 11, 2023, or the call of the chair. 

11



 

12



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Map data ©2023 200 m 

Laroue 
Property 

Creek Rd. 

7 a) 

13



ssmpuc.com

Laying the Groundwork For 

Future Generations

Prince Township Council
July 11, 2023

14



ssmpuc.com

Economic 
Development

Focus on Sustainability

Social 
Responsibility

Environmental  
Protection 

15



ssmpuc.com

Corporate Structure
Corporate 
Structure

PUC Group of Companies

16



ssmpuc.com

Where we Operate

2017 2022

17



ssmpuc.com

2022 Safety Record

1290 Days or 
1,621,714 hours 

without a lost time 
incident 

(as of December 31, 2022)

18



ssmpuc.com

As a national leader 
in advancing smart 
city solutions, PUC is 
investing in the 
communities we 
serve – and beyond –
by taking bold steps 
to modernize how we 
distribute electricity. 

2.7% 
Energy Savings

Reduction in C02 by 
2,804 tonnes/year

Shorter & 
Fewer Outages

Advanced Data
& Reporting

Putting Community-Wide Smart Grid Technology on the Map: 
Sault Smart Grid

19



ssmpuc.com

Putting Community-Wide Smart Grid Technology on the Map: 
Sault Smart Grid

20



ssmpuc.com

Partner in Industry & Sustainability:
PUC Transmission LP (TransCo)

As high-load industry partners, 
like Algoma Steel Inc. (ASI), look 
to make shifts in how they 
operate, and new businesses look 
to relocate, TransCo will play a 
key role in how the community 
can accommodate new 
opportunities for growth and 
diversification, while lowering 
their GHG emissions at the same 
time. 

21



ssmpuc.com

Making the Switch: Electric Vehicle Strategy

The electrification of PUC’s fleet

The installation of Home EV chargers for 
PUC customers

PUC is supporting the transition to electric vehicles; 
it is one pillar of a larger strategy to lower our carbon 
footprint and support community members to do the 
same. 

There are two main elements to PUC’s EV strategy: 

1

2

22



ssmpuc.com

Watertight Lining Solutions Inc. (WLS)

• Watertight Linings Solutions Inc. (WLS)’s focus 
is on helping municipalities fix an expensive 
and common problem: deteriorating water 
pipe

• WLS uses a Spray-in-Place-Pipe (SIPP) process 
which applies a polymer lining (Resiline 320). 
This process can:
• Save taxpayers millions of dollars
• Limit construction delays to as little as one 

day
• Reduce the carbon footprint by up to 75% 

compared to typical replacement pipe 

23



ssmpuc.com

3-Year Strategic Plan

24



What you can expect to see 
in Prince Township in 

2023/24…

25



Questions? 

26



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022 1

PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022

Laying The Groundwork For

Future Generations
27



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022

Your 
Trusted 
Utility 
for a Brighter 
Tomorrow

A sustainable future requires action now. This is why PUC is taking bold 

steps today that will change the way we will deliver services tomorrow. 

Our approach to sustainability focuses on economic development, social 

responsibility, and environmental protection. 

In 2022, PUC laid the groundwork on many fronts by continuing to 

invest in our people and infrastructure, while pursuing new growth 

opportunities and diversifying our services. This included PUC playing a 

key role as an early mover in energy transition to help our community and 

business/industry partners adapt to evolving energy trends and needs. 

PUC is proud to show the stories of those efforts in  

our 2022 Sustainability Report.

 

PUC Group of Companies (PUC)  
remains committed to being  
a valued partner in building  
sustainable and vibrant communities.

28



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022

Table of  
Contents

01 . . . 1. Message from the Chair

02 . . . 2. A Conversation with the President

04 . . . 3. PUC Group of Companies - Who We Are

04 . . . . 3.1. Mission

04 . . . . 3.2. Vision

04 . . . . 3.3. Values

04 . . . . 3.4. Areas of Strategic Focus

04 . . . . 3.5. Brand Promise 

05 . . . . 3.6. Where We Operate (growth story)

06 . . . . 3.7. Corporate Structure (growth story)

08 . . . 4. Building Blocks of Sustainability: Our Stories

09 . . . . 4.1. Putting Community-Wide Smart Grid Technology  

                      on the Map: Sault Smart Grid

11 . . . . 4.2. A Bright Story:  

                      Upgrading Sault Ste. Marie’s Streetlighting System

12 . . . . 4.3. Partner in Industry & Sustainability:  

                      PUC Transmission LP (TransCo)

13 . . . . 4.4. Making the Switch: PUC’s Role in the Shift to Electric Vehicles

14 . . . . 4.5. Supporting Community Members on the Ground:  

                      2022 Donations

15 . . . . 4.6. Investing in the Health and Safety  

                      of our Employees and the Community

16 . . . 5. Awards and Recognition in 2022

18 . . . 6. Outlook

20 . . . . 7. Executive Team

21 . . . . 8. Board of Directors

22 . . . . 9. Financial Statements

29



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 20221

Message from  
Andy McPhee 

Chair, PUC Services Inc. / PUC Inc.

Our proud history of balancing growth with environmental sustainability and social responsibility is 

something that continues to serve our organization well, as we invest in our collective future. Never before, 

have we seen investments at this level in our infrastructure, our growth, and our customer’s experience. 

PUC’s focus on our employees, our customers and our shareholder is at the centre of our Strategic Plan, and 

along with our Vision and Mission, acts as a compass guiding the bold decisions we have needed to make as 

we see ourselves in the middle of a rapidly changing sector.

I want to thank my fellow board members and the innovative employees at PUC who continue to push the 

boundaries every single day.

Andy McPhee 

Chair, PUC Services Inc./PUC Inc. Board of Directors

As a true community 
partner in sustainable 
development, PUC is 
using innovation and 
strategic partnerships 
to advance projects that 
are meaningful to the 
communities we serve.  

30



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022 2

Preparing  
for the Future
A conversation with Rob Brewer
President and CEO, PUC Services Inc.

Q. It appears 2022 was another busy year  

for PUC. What was the highlight?

There’s no doubt the work we accomplished to date in  

building the first community-wide smart grid in Canada 

is the most significant venture in PUC’s history. It has  

been exciting to see so much progress achieved 

safely and on budget in 2022. Despite supply shortages 

impacting construction world-wide, we are on 

track for completion in 2023. This is in large part 

due to PUC’s innovative and committed team. The 

highly complex project meant construction has been 

taking place simultaneously at multiple substations 

across the city while work behind the scenes 

focused on updating and configuring new software. 

With boots on the ground in 2022, our team has set  

the stage for Sault Ste. Marie to make history in  

2023 with PUC customers enjoying a transformation 

in the way electricity is delivered, providing 

increased reliability, improved communications 

and savings on energy consumption.

Q. I understand PUC has created a new Community 

Donation Strategy to make every dollar work as 

effectively as possible to support those in need? 

Giving back has always been a priority for PUC and its  

employees. In 2022 we implemented a new donation  

strategy with the goal of creating a greater impact  

in supporting members of our community in need. 

The new strategy allowed us to focus on smaller 

charitable organizations that were experiencing great 

demands yet, for the most part, had not benefited 

from donations from the larger corporate sector.  

PUC also focused on raising the profile of these charities 

to not only ensure those in need knew of their existence 

but to help draw in additional financial support. 

I have been so impressed with how our  

employees have responded to the program, 

continuing to find new ways to help and 

identifying new charities that can make a 

difference in our community. 

31



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 20223

Q. How has PUC’s work in 2022 helped to  

build a sustainable community?

This was a significant year for laying the 

groundwork for supporting future generations. 

PUC’s commitment to being a forward-thinking 

and early mover in the energy transition  

underway is critical to ensure a vibrant and 

healthy future for the communities we serve.

Along with the smart grid, we’ve also invested  

in new infrastructure to support Algoma Steel’s 

 project to build and operate two state of the 

art electric arc furnaces leading to a 70 per cent 

reduction in carbon emissions.

We’ve also introduced the Electric Vehicle (EV) 

home charger rental program to help make 

the transition to green energy solutions more 

affordable for our customers. 

This was also an important year for our Enterprise 

Risk Management Program. We are now in the 

implementation stage and will continue to refine 

controls and review risk technology to ensure we 

meet or exceed industry standards.

PUC also continues to invest in its most important 

asset - our people. Our safety record speaks for 

itself and it’s part of our corporate culture as we put 

a high emphasis on safety training for staff and our 

contractors. We have had 1290 Days or 1,621,714 

hours without a lost time incident with zero high 

risk employee incidents and zero high risk lost time 

incidents for 2022. 

Those are numbers all of us at PUC and the 

community can be proud of. 

Q. Speaking of numbers, an important part of 

supporting the sustainability of Sault Ste. Marie is 

ensuring its financial health. How has PUC helped?

Not only does PUC continue to provide strong returns 

to the city as noted in our financial report but our 

enterprise value has continued to increase since 2017 

and we project a 100 per cent increase by 2026.

32



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022 4

Who We Are

OUR MISSION 
We are a community leader providing 

safe and reliable utility services

OUR VISION 
Improving communities through 

curiosity and innovation

OUR VALUES 
Safety, Integrity, Customer-Centric, 

Innovative, Accountable

AREAS OF STRATEGIC FOCUS Customers Employees Shareholder

OUR BRAND PROMISE We lead the way through innovation and compassion  
to deliver outstanding service every single day.

33



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 20225

Where We Operate

Sault Ste. Marie

In 2018, PUC operated within approximately 7 

communities in Northern Ontario to provide:

Today, PUC operates within 142 communities 

throughout Ontario to provide:

Sault Ste. Marie

The supply, treatment and  
distribution of drinking water

The supply, treatment and  
distribution of drinking water

The operation of wastewater 
treatment facilities

The operation of wastewater 
treatment facilities

The supply of electricity The supply of electricity

Emergency Response Services & 
Annual Inspections for First Nations

The PUC Group of Companies continues to ‘Grow With Purpose’.  Since 2018, PUC has expanded our footprint significantly to offer more 
services in more communities than we ever have before in our 105 year history. It is part of PUC’s focus on strategic growth that is built 
upon a reputation of providing reliable, quality services to customers throughout Ontario. 

34



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022 6

Corporate  
Structure SHAREHOLDER

PARTIALLY OWNED 
SUBSIDIARIES OF PUC INC.

WHOLLY OWNED 
SUBSIDIARIES OF PUC INC.

Sault Ste. Marie 

Managed by PUC Services Inc.

MUNICIPAL-UTILITY 
SERVICE  COMPANY

HOLDING COMPANY

MUNICIPAL 
SERVICES BOARD

Sault Ste. Marie water treatment 2014 2022 2020 20222019

PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES

35



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 20227

PUC SERVICES INC.
PUC Services Inc. is a utility services company operating as a wholly owned 

private company of the Corporation of the City of Sault Ste. Marie. 

PUC INC. 
PUC Inc. is a holding company registered under the Ontario Business Corporations 

Act and is wholly owned by the Corporation of the City of Sault Ste. Marie. 

Water & Wastewater Services
PUBLIC UTILITIES  COMMISSION
The Public Utilities Commission of the City of Sault Ste. Marie owns the water 

supply and distribution infrastructure responsible for the provision of safe, 

reliable, potable water to customers within the municipal services boundary of 

the City of Sault Ste. Marie and Rankin Reserve of the Batchewana First Nation.

NORTHERN WATERWORKS INC.
Northern Water Works Inc. (NWI) provides water and wastewater treatment 

operations, maintenance and management services to 35 municipal and First 

Nation clients throughout the Province of Ontario. In addition, NWI provides 

emergency response services and annual inspections for all 133 First Nation 

communities across Ontario, either directly or through the Government of 

Canada’s Department of Indigenous Services Canada (ISC) and the Ontario 

Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks’ (MECP) Spills Action 

Centre (SAC).

WATERTIGHT LINING SOLUTIONS INC. 
Watertight Linings Solutions Inc. (WLS)’s focus is helping municipalities fix an expensive 

and common problem: deteriorating water pipe. WLS uses a Spray-in-Place-Pipe  

(SIPP) process which applies a polymer lining (Resiline 320). This process can save 

taxpayers millions of dollars, limit construction delays to as little as one day, and 

reduce the carbon footprint by up to 75% compared to typical replacement pipe.

Electricity
PUC DISTRIBUTION INC.
PUC Distribution Inc. is a local distribution company (LDC) that distributes electricity to  

residences and businesses within the boundaries of the City of Sault Ste. Marie, the 

Batchewana First Nation (Rankin Reserve), Prince Township and parts of Dennis Township.

PUC TRANSMISSION LP (TRANSCO)
PUC Transmission LP (TransCo) is a transmission company incorporated in 2021 

to provide cost-effective, locally owned and operated transmission services to 

Sault Ste. Marie area industries. TransCo’s new 230 kV transmission line will 

convey electricity from Hydro One’s Third Line Station in the city’s north end to 

a new PUC transformer station in the west end. 

Other
17 TREES
17 Trees is a forestry management company serving the Algoma, Sudbury and 

North Bay regions. A partnership between PUC Inc., Greater Sudbury Utilities 

Inc., and North Bay Hydro Services Inc., 17 Trees offers safe, high-quality utility 

forestry work at competitive rates for customers. 

PUC Group of Companies
The PUC Group of Companies provides diverse services to communities 

throughout Ontario. Through innovation and a focus on sustainability, PUC is 

leading the way as a true community partner that is lowering costs, improving 

reliability for customers and creating pathways for the future. 

36



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022 8

Building 
Blocks of 
Sustainability:
Our Stories

37



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 20229

Sault Ste. Marie

Sault Sault Ste. Marie 
City Council 
declared itself 
the “Alternative 
Energy Capital of 
North America”. 

70 MW

272 MW

Power

7 MW

68 MW203 MW

cogeneration facility  
at Algoma Steel

of wind generation

Natural Gas Plant

Lake Superior

battery storage  
project

of solar generationof hydroelectric generation

The Sault Smart Grid will transform how PUC 

delivers electricity to customers. It is part of a larger 

strategy that ties into the goals of the City of Sault 

Ste. Marie and our collective futures. 

Rooted between Lakes Huron and Superior, Sault 

Ste. Marie is uniquely positioned to be a leader in 

the energy transition. The energy landscape is both 

diverse and impressive, with a renewable energy 

mix matched by few cities in both Canada and the 

U.S. 

As a community-minded utility services company 

for over 100 years, PUC challenged itself to not only 

become a key player in this transition locally, but 

to do it in a way that is bold, innovative, and uses 

partnerships to best enable a grid for the future.

Community Partner  
for the Future

Smart 
Grid

Putting Community-Wide Smart Grid 
Technology On The Map 

38



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022 10

Putting Community-Wide Smart Grid Technology 
on the Map: Sault Smart Grid
As a national leader in advancing smart city solutions, PUC is investing in the 

communities we serve – and beyond – by taking bold steps to modernize how 

we distribute electricity. 

Once operational in 2023, the benefits of the Sault Smart 
Grid will be significant:

• 2.7 % in Energy Savings

• Reduction in C02 by 2,804 Tonnes a Year

• Shorter & Fewer Outages

• Advanced Data & Reporting

• Enables a Grid for the Future
In 2022, The Sault Smart Grid project made significant progress while staying on 

budget despite external challenges such as global supply shortages. 

The scope of work for a project of this magnitude is massive and includes:

• Major equipment installation and improvements to 10 of 12 of  

PUC’s distribution stations.

• Implementing a host of new technologies, including (Geographic 

Information Systems (GIS), Outage Management System, etc.),  

and leveraging existing technologies.

• Installation of new Distribution Automation equipment.

• Upgrades to Advanced Distribution Management System (ADMS) and 

SCADA included requirements for expanded  

and upgraded IT infrastructure to support new virtual servers and  

security requirements. 

• New Outage Management/Communications System for customers.

39



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 202211

A Bright 
Story
Upgrading City of Sault Ste.   
Marie’s Streetlighting System
Through an ongoing contract, PUC operates and maintains the City of Sault Ste. 

Marie’s streetlighting system. 

Between 2015 and 2017, approximately 9000 streetlights within Sault Ste. Marie 

and surrounding area were converted from High Pressure Sodium Vapor (HPS) 

to Light Emitting Diode (LED) technology. The initial investment was worth  

$8.3 million, that included government grants that supported the conversion. 

A typical HPS streetlight lasts around 24,000 hours, whereas an LED light can 

last upwards of 200,000 hours. Not only do the bulbs last longer, but they are 

also brighter and safer for community members, and consume less energy. 

To date in 2022, the City has seen annual savings of approx. $900,000 - that’s a total 

savings of over $4.7 million. Future opportunities exist within this initiative that will  

bring even more benefits to Sault Ste. Marie; it is another example of PUC working as 

a partner in the communities we serve on our collective path to sustainability. 

Since making the switch, the community has reduced Co2 emissions by 

approximately 20,000 metric tons.

40



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022 12

Partner in 
Industry & 
Sustainability
PUC Transmission LP (TransCo)
PUC Transmission was incorporated in 2021 to provide cost-effective, locally 

owned and operated transmission service to Sault Ste. Marie area industries. 

Establishing a transmission company within the PUC Group of Companies 

provides a unique opportunity to support sustainable growth within Sault Ste. 

Marie and area. 

As high-load industry partners, like Algoma Steel Inc. (ASI), look to make shifts 

in how they operate, and new businesses look to relocate, PUC Transmission 

LP (TransCo) will play a key role in how the community can accommodate 

new opportunities for growth and diversification, while lowering their GHG 

emissions at the same time.  

The new PUC 230 kV transmission line will support ASI’s plan to retire existing 

blast furnaces using mostly carbon-based fuel and replace them with Electric 

Arc Furnaces. The impact of this transition is monumental, significantly reducing 

greenhouse gases produced within the community. The reduction in CO2 

emissions is equivalent to approximately 1 million cars taken off of the road.  

With an anticipated completion of 2029, the $750M project will transform 

Algoma Steel into a leading supplier of green steel at a cost-effective rate.  

In 2022, TransCo started off the year by undertaking a Class Environmental 

Assessment Study. During the study, PUC hosted four public open houses to 

gain feedback from the community to help decide where the main route for 

the 230 kV lines and a 230/115/34.5kV substation would be built.  The public 

consultations played a key role in mapping out the route that was ultimately 

submitted for governmental approval in October.

The reduction  
in CO2 emissions  
is equivalent to  
approximately  
1 million cars  
taken off of the road.

41



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 202213

Making  
the Switch

PUC Services EV Home Charger  
Rental Program

PUC EV HOME CHARGER 
RENTAL PROGRAM

PUC Services Inc.’s EV home charger 

rental program is designed to assist 

customers in the adoption of EVs. 

This unique program to the region 

allows customers to rent an EV 

charger for a set monthly fee, that 

includes an installation credit and 

lifetime warranty. 

The program also has significant 

benefits to PUC by providing more 

intelligence into consumption on 

the city-wide grid. This will help 

in preparation for future energy 

planning in the area. 

TESTIMONIALS

PUC is supporting the transition to electric vehicles; it is one pillar of a larger 

strategy to lower our carbon footprint and support community members to do 

the same. There are two main elements to PUC’s EV strategy:

1. The electrification of PUC’s fleet

2. The installation of EV chargers for PUC customers

Electrification of PUC’s Fleet
In 2022, PUC installed 22 EV chargers at our various locations to support our 

transition to an electric fleet. 

PUC is taking a phased-in approach for the transition from internal combustion 

engine (ICE) vehicles to EVs, meaning that the EVs will substitute the ICE 

vehicles when they need replacement. 

PUC’s Role in the Shift to 
Electric Vehicles 

42



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022 14

Donations
Supporting Community 
Members on the Ground
In 2022, PUC’s Donation Committee, consisting of PUC employees from various 

departments, worked together to identify organizations that aligned with PUC’s 

new strategy and goals.  As word spread, more organizations approached PUC, 

asking for support. The company focused on smaller donation amounts so more 

money could be shared. In 2022, the number of charities more than tripled 

with 60 different charities supported. 

The Donation Committee also spearheaded six company fundraising BBQs that 

resulted in employees donating to 6 local charities.

PUC staff came together to once again decorate the alleyway beside Outspoken 

Brewing on Queen Street in Sault Ste. Marie. The Giving Trees provided 

toiletries, hats, mitts and gloves to those in need, helping to make a difference 

for many during the holiday season. 

charities
were supported  
by PUC in 2022.

43



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 202215

Investing in the 
Health  
and Safety 
of our Employees  
and Community
After three plus years of in-person safety training being put on hold 

due to the pandemic, safety classes were back in session. Numerous 

in person safety courses, including those focused on mental health, 

were offered again for our employees.  

In 2022, PUC launched a new online incident reporting/reviewing 

program for employees. This program streamlines our reporting 

process and allows staff the ability to report and review incidents  

in a timely manner.

Additionally, our managers, supervisors and executives completed 

the most amount of crew observations in our company’s history.  

44



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022 16

Awards and 
Recognition
2022

45



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 202217

PUC 
Awards and 
Recognition

Algoma Public Health Community Health Champion AwardSault Ste. Marie Chamber of Commerce Community Investment Award

Congratulations to PUC’s  
2022 Bright Lights 
Winners: 
 
Customer Centric: Christian Ouellet, 
Curtis Deschamps, Bryce Vanderburg 
& Jeff Cole  
Innovation: Natalie Fecteau  
Integrity: Matt Jakibchuk 
Safety: Greg Zimmer 
Accountable: Tayler Sonke 

In 2022, PUC was recognized with multiple awards and was proud to 
shine a light on employees who went above and beyond to represent 
PUC’s Core Values. 

46



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022 18

Outlook

47



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 202219

Not only is it important to reflect  
on what we have accomplished;  
it is important to focus on our  
roadmap for the future. 

2023-25 STRATEGIC INITIATIVES 
1. Digital Transformation

2. Operational Planning & Execution

3. Diversity, Equity & Inclusion (DEI)

4. Strategic Growth

Annual reporting on PUC’s Strategic Plan will be an important part of our 

sustainability reports moving forward. 

More than ever, our focus is on a sustainable PUC that is developing 

strategies to lower our carbon footprint, support our communities, and 

maintain exceptional customer service well into the future. PUC’s Strategic 

Plan 2023-25 provides direction and focus, connecting PUC’s mission and 

vision for the future to our roadmap on how to get there. 

PUC’s long-term goals are clear and compelling targets, representing a big 

picture plan that could take ten plus years to complete. Strategic initiatives 

allow PUC to translate a handful of actions that we can take to execute 

long-term goals over the medium term.

LONG-TERM GOALS
1. Dominant electric utility in Northern Ontario

2. Largest provider of water and wastewater services in Ontario

3. Top 100 best Companies to work for in Canada

4. Model for Diversity, Equity & Inclusion

Strategic Plan

48



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022 20

Executive Team

Robert Brewer,  
Hon. BSC, MBA
P R E S I D E N T  &  C E O

Claudio Stefano,  
P.Eng, MBA
E X E C U T I V E  L E A D ,  
O P E R AT I O N S  &  E N G I N E E R I N G

Kelly McLellan,  
CPA, CMA, M.Acc 
C H I E F  F I N A N C I A L  O F F I C E R

Robert Battisti,  
CPA, CMA, MBA
V I C E  P R E S I D E N T,  C O R P O R AT E  S E R V I C E S

Guillaume Vachon,  
P.Eng., PMP
V I C E  P R E S I D E N T, 
O P E R AT I O N S  &  E N G I N E E R I N G

Kevin Bell,  
P.Eng. 
V I C E  P R E S I D E N T,  S P E C I A L  P R O J E C T S

49



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 202221

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PUCSERVICES INC./PUC INC.

Andy McPhee 
C H A I R 
R E T I R E D  V I C E - P R E S I D E N T,  
G R E AT  L A K E S  P O W E R  T R A N S M I S S I O N

Ila Watson 
V I C E  C H A I R 
P R E S I D E N T  &  C E O ,  S A U LT  A R E A  H O S P I TA L

Elaine Pitcher
L A W Y E R ,  P I T C H E R  L A W

Jim Boniferro
P R ES I D E N T & C EO, B O N I F E R RO M I L L  WO R KS U LC

Neil Strom
M I L L  C O N T R O L L E R ,  A L G O M A  S T E E L  I N C .

Bob Giroux
P R E S I D E N T  &  C E O ,  S O A N B E R T  C O R P.

Scott Seabrook
S E N I O R  D I R E C T O R ,  F I N A N C E ,  O L G

PUC DISTRIBUTION INC.

Jim Rennie 
C H A I R 
V I C E  P R E S I D E N T,  H U M A N  R E S O U R C E S ,  
I R V I N G  S H I P  B U I L D I N G

Pat McAuley
VICE-CHAIR 
RETIRED, COMMISSIONER OF PUBLIC WORKS AND 
TRANSPORTATION, CITY OF SAULT STE. MARIE

Mark Howson
RETIRED, SENIOR MAINTENANCE ENGINEER,  
ESSAR STEEL ALGOMA INC.

Jim P. Boniferro
PRESIDENT & CEO, BONIFERRO MILL WORKS ULC

PUBLIC UTILITIES  COMMISSION

Mark Howson  
C H A I R 
R E T I R E D  S E N I O R  M A I N T E N A N C E  E N G I N E E R , 

A L G O M A  S T E E L  I N C . 

Corey Gardi
C I T Y  C O U N C I L L O R ,  C I T Y  O F  S A U LT  S T E .  M A R I E

David Zuccato
R E T I R E D ,  S E N I O R  P R O V I N C I A L  C I V I L  S E R VA N T

Dr. Musa Onyuna
M E TA L LU RG I C A L S P EC I A L I ST, A LG O M A ST E E L I N C.

Sandra Hollingsworth
C I T Y  C O U N C I L L O R ,  C I T Y  O F  S A U LT  S T E .  M A R I E

50



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022 22

Financial Statements

Securing  
the Future

51



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 202223

Management has extracted this financial information from the audited financial statements.

PUC INC.
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2022, with comparative information for 2021

2022 2021

Assets
Current assets:

Accounts receivable $ 712,081 $ 711,951
Payment in lieu of taxes recoverable 5,382 10,098
Receivable from PUC Services Inc. 2,666,328 2,834,151  

3,383,791 3,556,200

Deferred tax assets 25,000 9,000
Investments in subsidiaries 50,801,579 50,801,579
Note receivable 8,310,000 8,310,000

59,136,579 59,120,579

$ 62,520,370 $ 62,676,779

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 886 $ 811,266

Long-term debt 31,720,000 31,720,000

Shareholder's equity:
Share capital 29,238,248 29,238,248
Retained earnings 1,561,236 907,265

30,799,484 30,145,513
 

$ 62,520,370 $ 62,676,779

See accompanying notes to financial information.

1

PUC INC.
Statement of Earnings and Retained Earnings

Year ended December 31, 2022, with comparative information for 2021

2022 2021

Revenue:
Interest income $ 2,293,534 $ 2,257,019
Dividend income 710,080 710,080

3,003,614 2,967,099
Expenses:

Interest on long-term debt 1,934,920 1,934,920
Business development 347,709 270,854
Administrative 83,014 80,886

2,365,643 2,286,660

Earnings before income taxes 637,971 680,439

Payment in lieu of taxes (recovery) (16,000) (14,338)

Net earnings 653,971 694,777

Retained earnings, beginning of year 907,265 1,022,568

Dividends - (810,080)
  
Retained earnings, end of year $ 1,561,236 $ 907,265

See accompanying notes to financial information.

2
52



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 202224

Management has extracted this financial information from the audited financial statements.

PUC SERVICES INC.
Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31, 2022, with comparative information for 2021

2022 2021

Assets
Current assets:

Cash $ 761,864        $ 4,936,680     
Accounts receivable (note 5) 5,718,771     3,153,508     
Due from related parties (note 19) 17,208,312   13,753,188   
Inventories (note 6) 602,206        461,524        
Prepaid expenses 1,316,288     840,624        
Payment in lieu of taxes recoverable 174,109        418,118        
Total current assets 25,781,550   23,563,642   

Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment (note 7) 17,706,833   17,141,883   
Intangible assets (note 8) 1,025,880     1,096,834     
Total non-current assets 18,732,713   18,238,717   

Total assets $ 44,514,263   $ 41,802,359   

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 5,702,400     $ 4,649,365     
Deferred tax liabilities (note 9) 458,000        22,000          
Dividends payable -                225,000        
Due to related parties (note 19) 11,920,309   10,806,857   
Current portion of long-term debt (note 10) 85,656          85,656          
Lease liabilities  - current 26,917          31,936          
Total current liabilities 18,193,282   15,820,814   

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt (note 10) 8,886,562     8,972,218     
Lease liabilities (note 11) 47,978          68,968          
Deferred revenue (note 7) 10,568,482   10,578,508   
Employee future benefit obligations (note 12) 1,453,180     1,786,769     
Total non-current liabilities 20,956,202   21,406,463   

Total liabilities 39,149,484   37,227,277   

Shareholder's equity:
Share capital (note 15) 1,943,300     1,943,300     
Accumulated other comprehensive income 954,232        654,773        
Retained earnings 2,467,247     1,977,009     
Total shareholder's equity 5,364,779     4,575,082     

Commitments and contingences (note 18)

Total liabilities and shareholder's equity $ 44,514,263   $ 41,802,359   

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

_________________________________ Director      _______________________________ Director 1

PUC SERVICES INC.
Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income

As at December 31, 2022, with comparative information for 2021

2022 2021

Revenue:
Management fees $ 12,258,541   $ 10,709,906    
Contracts 5,840,561     5,840,561      
Services 2,319,380     4,199,340      
Other operating revenue (note 16) 1,690,795     1,553,440      

22,109,277   22,303,247    

Expenses:
Contract service 7,443,755     8,371,701      
Administrative 5,571,560     5,331,641      
Facilities 2,252,548     2,065,206      
Depreciation and amortization 2,740,600     2,448,494      
Billing and collection 1,096,453     1,211,302      
Customer service 1,124,218     1,044,460      
Street lights 419,079        403,001         
New business development 347,709        270,902         
Other business and maintenance 80,652          68,915           

21,076,574   21,215,622    

Income from operating activities 1,032,703     1,087,625      

Net finance costs (note 17) 477,587        489,130         

Income before provision for payment in lieu of taxes 555,116        598,495         

Payment in lieu of taxes (note 9):
Current (recovery) expense (263,154)       (111,951)       
Deferred expense 328,032        122,607         

64,878          10,656           

Income for the year 490,238        587,839         

Other comprehensive income (loss): items that will not be classified
to profit or loss, net of income tax:
  Remeasurement of employee future benefits (note 12) 407,427        669,408         
  Income tax recovery (expense) 
    on other comprehensive income (note 9) (107,968)       (177,393)       

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year 299,459        492,015         

Net income and comprehensive income for the year $ 789,697        $ 1,079,854      

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2

53



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022 25

Management has extracted this financial information from the audited financial statements.

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE
  CITY OF SAULT STE. MARIE
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2022, with comparative information for 2021

2022 2021

Financial assets:
Cash $ 99,239           $ 115,178        
Accounts receivable 4,818,891      4,167,971     
Unbilled service revenue 1,235,298      1,194,468     
Receivable from related company, PUC Services Inc. (note 3) 9,253,981      7,972,706     

15,407,409    13,450,323   

Financial liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5,610,072      5,427,054     
Loan payable (note 5) 2,736,414      3,569,084     

8,346,486      8,996,138     

Total net financial assets 7,060,923      4,454,185     

Non-financial assets:
Tangible capital assets (note 7) 108,067,126  102,761,366 
Inventory 435,142         379,218        

108,502,268  103,140,584 

Accumulated surplus (note 8) $ 115,563,191  $ 107,594,769 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

1

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE
  CITY OF SAULT STE. MARIE
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

Year ended December 31, 2022, with comparative information for 2021

2022 2022 2021
Budget Total Total
(note 2)

Revenues:
Service revenue:

Residential $ 13,357,056      $ 13,568,365     $ 13,044,603     
General 9,035,150        9,148,237       8,074,650       
Hydrants 1,636,908        1,695,771       1,565,902       

24,029,114      24,412,373     22,685,155     
Other:

Investment income 75,000             241,471          114,547          
Non-service revenue 280,830           950,823          676,961          
Developers contributions -                   895,303          1,091,918       

355,830           2,087,597       1,883,426       
Total revenues 24,384,944      26,499,970     24,568,581     

Expenditures: (note 6)
Purification and pumping 4,487,431        4,340,721       3,749,726       
Transmission and distribution 4,593,469        4,599,013       4,157,152       
Amortization of tangible capital assets 2,945,134        2,917,347       2,788,336       
Hydrants 739,222           465,240          409,965          
Billing and collection 1,284,684        1,497,191       1,348,595       
Interest on long-term debt 99,196             99,250            124,715          
General and administration 4,460,221        4,612,786       4,161,345       

Total expenditures 18,609,357      18,531,548     16,739,834     

Operating surplus 5,775,587        7,968,422       7,828,747       

Accumulated operating surplus, beginning of year 107,594,769    107,594,769   99,766,022     

Accumulated operating surplus, end of year $ 113,370,356    $ 115,563,191   $ 107,594,769   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2

54



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 202226

Management has extracted this financial information from the audited financial statements.

PUC DISTRIBUTION INC.
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2022, with comparative information for 2021

2022 2021

Assets

Current assets:
Cash $ 1,106,618        $ 815,229           
Accounts receivable (note 4) 5,077,837        6,121,404        
Unbilled revenue 11,131,321      10,976,609      
Payment in lieu of taxes recoverable -                      9,709               
Inventory (note 5) 2,698,152        2,161,802        
Prepaid expenses 541,778           200,875           
Total current assets 20,555,706      20,285,628      

Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment (note 6) 108,671,386    112,462,126    

Total assets 129,227,092    132,747,754    

Regulatory balances (note 8) 23,661,714      9,437,146        

Total assets and regulatory balances $ 152,888,806    $ 142,184,900    

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

1

PUC DISTRIBUTION INC.
Statement of Financial Position (continued)

December 31, 2022, with comparative information for 2021

2022 2021

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 13,102,074    $ 12,141,711      
Customer deposits (note 11) 331,420         313,596           
Payment in lieu of taxes 35,803           -                      
Dividends payable 610,080         610,080           
Due to related parties (note 17) 12,094,677    12,638,877      
Current portion of long-term debt (note 10) 2,030,770      1,923,586        
Total current liabilities 28,204,824    27,627,850      

Non-current liabilities:
Deferred revenue (note 9) 6,009,457      7,034,528        
Deferred tax liability (note 7) 2,877,000      1,989,000        
Long-term debt (note 10) 73,125,410    66,156,179      
Total non-current liabilities 82,011,867    75,179,707      

Total liabilities 110,216,691  102,807,557    

Shareholder's equity:
Share capital (note 12) 20,062,107    20,062,107      
Retained earnings 21,599,855    18,618,415      
Total shareholder's equity 41,661,962    38,680,522      

Total liabilities and shareholder's equity 151,878,653  141,488,079    

Regulatory balances (note 8) 1,010,153      696,821           

Commitments and contingences (note 16)

Total liabilities, regulatory balances and shareholder's equity $ 152,888,806  $ 142,184,900    

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

             

Director Director

2

55



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022 27

Management has extracted this financial information from the audited financial statements.

PUC DISTRIBUTION INC.
Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income 

Year ended December 31, 2022, with comparative information for 2021

2022 2021

Revenue:
Electricity sales (note 13) $ 71,757,107    $ 71,763,066    
Distribution revenue (note 13) 20,228,964    19,207,805    

91,986,071    90,970,871    

Other operating revenue (note 14) 2,970,919      7,281,109      
94,956,990    98,251,980    

Expenses:
Energy purchases 73,523,690    71,603,747    
Operations and maintenance 5,951,255      6,406,837      
General and administrative 3,807,234      4,025,734      
Billing and collection 1,509,091      1,370,374      
Depreciation and amortization 4,271,685      3,842,226      
Community relations 671,027         5,206,928      

89,733,982    92,455,846    

Income from operating activities 5,223,008      5,796,134      

Net finance costs (note 15) 3,109,189      3,023,221      
Income before tax and regulatory items 2,113,819      2,772,913      

Income tax expense:
Current (note 7) 99,662           71,089           
Deferred (note 7) 888,000         602,000         

987,662         673,089         

Income for the year before movements in
regulatory deferral account balances 1,126,157      2,099,824      

Net movement in regulatory deferral account balances
  related to income or loss (1,577,363)    284,569         
Income tax (888,000)       (602,000)       

(2,465,363)    (317,431)       

Net income, being total comprehensive 
 income for the year $ 3,591,520      $ 2,417,255      

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

3

PUC DISTRIBUTION INC.
Statement of Changes in Shareholder's Equity

Year ended December 31, 2022, with comparative information for 2021

Share Retained 
Capital Earnings Total

Balance as at January 1, 2021 $ 20,062,107   $ 16,811,240    $ 36,873,347   

Net income and comprehensive income -                2,417,255      2,417,255     
Dividends on common shares -                (610,080)        (610,080)       
Balance at December 31, 2021 20,062,107   18,618,415    38,680,522   

Net income and comprehensive income -                3,591,520      3,591,520     
Dividends on common shares -                (610,080)        (610,080)       
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 20,062,107   $ 21,599,855    $ 41,661,962   

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

4

56



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022 28

Thank you to the communities we 
serve for putting your trust in us every 
single day. We will continue to be your 
partner in finding new ways to make a 
brighter tomorrow possible.

Thank You

57



PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022 29
PUC GROUP OF COMPANIES | SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2022

58



 

                       COUNCIL       REPORT 
________________________________________________________     
 

Date:    July 7, 2023 Date Presented:  July 11, 2023 

Prepared By:  Steve Hemsworth Rank: Fire Chief 

 
 
Operations 
 
Responses for June   2023 Total 
 
Medical – 1     5 
Fires – 0     1 
MVA – 0     3 
Other- 0     0 
 
Personnel 
 
Last years summer student has now graduated from the Pre-Service Fire program at 
Cambrian College.  With his training now completed we have taken him on as a township 
firefighter.   
 
Training 
 
For the week of July 10, two members are attending the Sault Fire Regional Training 
Center for a five-day NFPA 1072 Hazmat Operations Course.  These two have taken a 
week’s holidays from their full-time work to attend. 
 

Equipment 
 
The build on our new pumper continues.  See attached for the latest update. 
 
Fire Prevention 
 
Fire safety and prevention messaging is continuing to be distributed on the departments 
Facebook and Instagram social media accounts. 
 

59



Photo Album for 

Prince Township Fire Department, ON

Job # 37414

W/O # 30303556

July 1, 2023

Since the last report, your new Pierce Pumper 

continued with final assembly and installation of option 

content. Next week your truck should continue with 

final assembly and may be released for initial and third 

party pump testing.       

60



DSC00255 DSC00256

DSC00257 DSC00258

61



DSC00259 DSC00260

DSC00261 DSC00262

62



DSC00263 DSC00264

DSC00265 DSC00266

63



DSC00267 DSC00268

DSC00269 DSC00270

64



DSC00271 DSC00272

65



June 2023 Expenditure Report for Prince Township

Chq # Date Vendor Description Amount

        10600 6/1/2023 Bell Canada 5-13-2023 - Advertising & phone/fax line 166.54$          

        10601 6/1/2023 Public Utilities Corporation May 04, 2023 - Fire Station Hydro 1,526.13$       

2023-4- May - Community Centre Hydro

2023-4- May - Community Centre Hydro

2023-4- May - Community Centre Hydro

4 May 2023 - Museum Hydro

4 May 2023 - Museum Hydro

May 04, 2023 - Fire Station Hydro

May 04, 2023 - Fire Station Hydro

May, 4, 2023 - Pavilion Hydro

May 4, 2023 - Quonset Hut Hydro

May, 4, 2023 - Pavilion Hydro

May 4, 2023 - Quonset Hut Hydro

INV0013796 - Management of water system

INV0013796 - Management of water system

INV0013796 - Management of water system

May, 4, 2023 - Pavilion Hydro

May 4, 2023 - Quonset Hut Hydro

4 May 2023 - Museum Hydro

        10602 6/1/2023 Orkin Canada Corporation C-4000940 - Pest Control 166.16$          

        10603 6/1/2023 Xerox Canada Inc. P60489788 - March 2023 Photo Copies 17.38$            

        10604 6/2/2023 Public Utilities Corporation May 25 2023 - Streetlight Hydro 557.43$          

May 25 2023 - Streetlight Hydro

May 25 2023 - Streetlight Hydro

May 25, 2023 - LED Gateway Hydro

May 25, 2023 - LED Gateway Hydro

May 25, 2023 - LED Gateway Hydro

        10605 6/2/2023 WirelessCom Ca Inc. 19934 - Repair back door entry system 236.25$          

        10606 6/2/2023 Wishart Law Firm 162418 - Re tax sale and removal of certificate 82.00$            

        10607 6/2/2023 Reliance Home Comfort May 10, 2023 - Water Heater Rental 65.52$            

        10608 6/2/2023 Algoma District School Board 2022-2 - Balance owing for 2022 6,763.61$       

        10609 6/2/2023 Pioneer Construction Inc. 10002307 - Cold mix for Gagnon Rd 284.82$          

        10610 6/2/2023 Steve Rouble May 24, 2023 - Mark-out for burials 100.00$          

        10611 6/2/2023 AMCTO 230575 - Job Posting - CAO 632.80$          

        10612 6/2/2023 BDO Canada LLP CINV2306949 - preperation of bank reconciliations and bookkeeping 2022 4,534.13$       

        10613 6/2/2023 Municipal Finance Officers' Association 2023JP-Prince -01 - Job Posting-CAO 310.75$          

        10614 6/2/2023 Topline Electric Limited 7567 - New light in stairwell, install photocell on outside receptacle 358.78$          

        10615 6/2/2023 Reliable Maintenance Products 1202371 - Garbage bags 37.09$            

        10616 6/2/2023 Xerox Canada Inc. p60371372 - photo copies 26.83$            

        10617 6/2/2023 ENBRIDGE GAS INC. May 19, 2023 - Fire Station Fuel 79.00$            

        10618 6/2/2023 DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL SERVICES CANADA INC. 9015881 - 3 month mailing stystem lease 532.70$          

        10619 6/2/2023 WAMCO 307233000904 - Calcium for roads 4,322.25$       

        10620 6/2/2023 Peavey Mart 5-5-2023 - Bar & Chain oil , 2 stroke oil, etc 220.29$          

        10621 6/8/2023 Receiver General May 2023 - May 2022 Payroll Liabilities - IT, CPP, EI 4,819.82$       

        10622 6/8/2023 KEVIN HOBBS June 8, 2023 - 2-flags, coffee, creamer 163.16$          

        10623 6/8/2023 Receiver General 816.18$          

        10624 6/16/2023 Archibald Bros. 202306 - Grading, Loader and Backhoe Services 3,528.43$       

        10625 6/16/2023 City of Sault Ste Marie IVC00090392 - June 2023 Policing Services 18,504.89$     

        10626 6/16/2023 Huron Superior Catholic School Board 2023 2nd quarter - 2023 2nd quarter 11,709.52$     

        10627 6/16/2023 LeCounseil Scolaire de District Catholique 2nd quarter - 2023 2nd quarter 893.67$          

        10628 6/16/2023 Conseil Scolaire de District du Grand Nord 2023 2nd quarter - 2023 2nd quarter 364.45$          

        10629 6/16/2023 Public Utilities Corporation Jun 05 2023 - Fire Station Hydro 2,185.11$       

INV0013867 - Management of water system

INV0013867 - Management of water system

2023 05 June - Quonset Hut Hydro

2023 05 June - Quonset Hut Hydro

Jun 05, 2023 - Community Centre Hydro

2023 05 June - Quonset Hut Hydro

66



INV0013866 - Fire Hydrant Charge

Jun 05 2023 - Fire Station Hydro

INV0013867 - Management of water system

Jun 05 2023 - Fire Station Hydro

June 05 2023 - Museum Hydro

June 05 2023 - Museum Hydro

Jun 05, 2023 - Community Centre Hydro

Jun 05, 2023 - Community Centre Hydro

June 5, 2023 - Pavilion-Hydro

June 5, 2023 - Pavilion-Hydro

June 5, 2023 - Pavilion-Hydro

June 05 2023 - Museum Hydro

        10630 6/16/2023 Spectrum Group C1284011 - Monthly Tower Rental - Prince Lake 367.25$          

        10631 6/16/2023 Airways General Store Fuel- Chevy, Dodge, lawnmower, and wajax pump 842.58$          

        10632 6/16/2023 Algoma District School Board 2023 2nd quarter - 2023 2nd quarter 60,982.97$     

        10633 6/16/2023 Minister of Finance - Ontario 302803230703055 - Fire College Registration fees Oct to Dec 2022 520.00$          

        10634 6/16/2023 Ironside Consulting Services Inc. 102593 - Development of information for CAO hiring 2,825.00$       

        10635 6/16/2023 Construction Equipment Co. (Sault) Inc. W20878 - Repair & labour on two trimmers 115.91$          

        10636 6/16/2023 BDO Canada LLP CINV2344212 - Bank Reconciliations from Nov 2022 - April 2023 7,299.94$       

        10637 6/16/2023 GFL Environmental Inc. GS0000184693 - Recycling and Garbage Disposal 7,561.45$       

        10638 6/16/2023 Crime Stoppers of SSM & Algoma District 2023 - 2023 donation 500.00$          

        10639 6/16/2023 Gayle Russell June 2023 - St Aloysius Cemetery Markers 67.71$            

        10640 6/16/2023 Stephen Turco, RPP 63 - May 2023-Planning Services 560.00$          

        10641 6/16/2023 ICONIX Waterworks LP C2316032471 - 2- Chevron Signs for Marshall Dr. 354.03$          

        10642 6/16/2023 MARGARET CHRISTENSON 6-8-2023 - Padlock and Indigenous Posters 242.05$          

        10643 6/16/2023 Batman Plumbing and Heating Inc. 8539 - Repair roof drain and piping 3,955.00$       

        10644 6/20/2023 City of Sault Ste Marie IVC00090421 - Training July 10-14 960.50$          

        10645 6/20/2023 Lorraine Mousseau 6-19-2023 - Toner & Envelopes 324.16$          

        10646 6/20/2023 Johnson's Fire Services Inc. 47 - Pumper 1 annual test 525.45$          

        10647 6/28/2023 Topline Electric Limited 7624 - Repair Pavilion Outlets 94.92$            

        10648 6/28/2023 Barbie Rudnicki May 2023 - Animal Control Officer May Mileage 81.84$            

        10649 6/28/2023 TIFFANY BAXTER 6-22-2023 - Pail, garbage bags and cleaning supplies 71.13$            

        10650 6/28/2023 SUMMIT PCG COMMUNICATIONS SPECIALISTS 4.0 - Various communication tasks, packages and Council material 2,180.90$       

        10651 7/5/2023 City of Sault Ste Marie IVC00090491 - Enhanced 911 Telephone System 1,291.18$       

IVC00090491 - Enhanced 911 Telephone System

IVC00090491 - Enhanced 911 Telephone System

        10652 7/5/2023 Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 1800033562 - 3rd Quarterly-Property Assessment Services & Support 5,105.91$       

        10653 7/5/2023 Receiver General June 2023 - June 2023 - Payroll Liabilities - IT, CPP, EI 3,138.14$       

        10654 7/5/2023 GFL Environmental Inc. LQ01807094 - Gros Cap Park  Outhouse Cleaning 158.54$          

164,132.25$   

June 2023 Revenue Report for Prince Township

Bag Tags $0.00

Dog Tags $7.50

Fire Permits $0.00

Hall Rentals $360.00

Marina Revenue $209.05

Opening & Closing $1,050.00

Recreation Revenue $1,425.95

Tax Certificates $150.00

Municipal/prov grant $66,402.66

Stewardship Ontario $5,383.13

Parent/Child Resource Centre $10,331.06

Government Misc. $1,473.72

Building Permit civic sign $30.00

Newsletter Advertising $60.00

$86,883.07

Property Tax $59,594.11

$146,477.18

67



THE CORPORATION of THE TOWNSHIP of PRINCE 

By-Law 2023-20 

BEING A BY-LAW to confirm proceedings of the meeting of Council, July 11, 2023.      
 

WHEREAS Section 5(3) of the Municipal Act, R.S.O. 2001, as amended requires a municipal 
council to exercise its power by bylaw except where otherwise provided;  
 
AND WHEREAS in many cases, action which is taken or authorized to be taken by a Council or a 
Committee of Council does not lend itself to an individual bylaw;   
 
THE COUNCIL of THE CORPORATION of PRINCE HEREBY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:  
 
THAT the action of the Council at its meeting, July 11, 2023:     

1. in respect to each motion, resolution and other action passed and taken by the Council at 
its said meeting, is, except where prior approval of the Ontario Municipal Board is required, 
hereby adopted, ratified, and confirmed.   

 
2. THAT the Mayor and the proper officers of the Township are hereby authorized and directed 

to do all things necessary to give effect to the said action or to obtain approvals where 
required, and to execute all documents as may be necessary and directed to affix the 
Corporate Seal to all such documents as required.  

 
READ and passed in open Council this 11th day of July 2023.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Enzo Palumbo, Mayor Antoinette Blunt, Interim Clerk 

    SEAL 

68


	1) July 11, 2023 Agenda- Amended 10 July 2023.pdf (p.1-5)
	4 a) June 13, 2023 Minutes.pdf (p.6-10)
	4 b) Minutes, Special Open Meeting, 3 July 2023.pdf (p.11)
	6 a) Dale Laroue Request.pdf (p.12-13)
	6 b) i. Prince Township Presentation_July 2023.pdf (p.14-26)
	Slide Number 1
	Focus on Sustainability
	Corporate Structure
	Where we Operate
	2022 Safety Record
	Slide Number 6
	Putting Community-Wide Smart Grid Technology on the Map: �Sault Smart Grid
	Partner in Industry & Sustainability:�PUC Transmission LP (TransCo)
	Making the Switch: Electric Vehicle Strategy
	Watertight Lining Solutions Inc. (WLS)
	3-Year Strategic Plan
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13

	6 b) ii. PUC Group of Companies 2022 Sustainability Report.pdf (p.27-58)
	7 a) i. July, 2023 Fire Report.pdf (p.59)
	7 a) ii. Update 8 Prince-Township-Fire-Department-ON-37414-7-1-2023.pdf (p.60-65)
	Slide 1: Photo Album for  Prince Township Fire Department, ON Job # 37414 W/O # 30303556 July 1, 2023
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6

	7 b) Expenditure and Revenue Report-June 2023.pdf (p.66-67)
	15) By-Law 2023-20 Confirmatory by-law July 11 2023.pdf (p.68)

